CONCILIATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE PROGRAMS
AND
ANALYSIS GROUP, INC.
111 HUNTINGTON AVENUE
BOSTON, MA 02199
OFCCP CASE R00185731

PART I, PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (“OFCCP”) evaluated Analysis Group,
Inc.’s facility located at 111 Huntington Avenue, Boston, MA 02199 (hercinafter “AGI”) and
found that AGT was not in compliance with the Executive Order 11246, as amended (“E.O.
11246”) and its implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. Sections 60-1 — 60-3. OFCCP notified
AGI of the specific violations found and the corrective actions required in a Notice of Violations
issued on January 19, 2017. While AGI does not agree with OFCCP’s findings, in the interest of
resolving the violations without engaging in further legal proceedings and in exchange for the
good and valuable consideration described in this document, OFCCP and AGI enter this
Conciliation Agreement and agree to all the terms stated below.

PART II. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Inexchange for AGI’s fulfillment of all obligations in Parts IIT and I'V of the Agreement,
OFCCP agrees not to institute administrative or judicial enforcement proceedings under E.O.,
11246 based on the violations described in more detail in Part 11l below. However, OFCCP
has the right to initiate legal proceedings to enforce the Agreement itself or to correct and
obtain relief for the alleged violations described in Part TIT if AGI violates this Agreement.
Nothing in this Agreement precludes OFCCP from initiating enforcement proceedings based
on future compliance evaluations or complaint investigations.

2. AGI agrees that OFCCP may review its compliance with this Agreement. As part of
such review, OFCCP may require written reports, inspect the premises, interview
witnesses, and examine and copy documents. AGI will permit access to its premises and
employees during normal business hours for these purposes and will provide OFCCP
with all reports and documents requested.

3. AGI understands that nothing in this Agreement relieves AGI of its obligation to fully
comply with the requirements of E.O. 11246, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 793 ("Section 503"), the Vietnam Era Veterans'
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. § 4212 ("VEVRAA"),
their implementing regulations, and other applicable equal employment laws.
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AGI promises not to harass, intimidate, threaten, discriminate, or otherwise retaliate
against any individual because the individual: benefits from this Agreement, filesa
complaint or participates in any investigation or proceeding under E.O. 11246, Section
503, and/or VEVRAA, or engages in any activity listed at 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.32(a).

The parties understand the terms of this Agreement and enter into it voluntarily.

This document and its attachments contain the complete and final understanding of the
parties with respect to the matters referenced herein. This Agreement contains all terms
by which the parties are bound and it supersedes all prior written or oral negotiations and
agreements. There will be no modifications or amendments to this Agreement unless they
are in writing, signed by all parties.

If one or more provisions of this Agreement are rendered unlawful or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will remain in full force and effect.

This Agreement becomes effective on the day it is signed by the Regional Director of the
Northeast Region (the "Effective Date").

This Agreement will expire sixty (60) calendar days after AGI submits the final progress
report required in Part IV, below, unless OFCCP notifies AGI in writing prior to the
expiration date that AGI has not fulfilled all of its obligations under the Agreement, in
which case the Agreement is automatically extended until the date that OFCCP
determines AGI has met all of its obligations under the Agreement.

If AGI violates this Conciliation Agreement,
A. The procedures setforth at 41 C.F.R § 60-1.34 will govemn:

(1) If OFCCP believes that AGI violated any term of the Agreement while it was in
effect, OFCCP will send AGI a written notice stating the alleged violations and
summarizing any supporting evidence.

(2) AGI will have 15 days from receipt of such notice to demonstrate in writing that
it has not violated the Agreement, unless such a delay would result in irreparable
injury to the employment rights of affected employees or applicants.

(3) If AGI is unable to demonstrate that it has not violated the Agreement, or if
OFCCP alleges irreparable injury, enforcement proceedings may be initiated
immediately without issuing a show cause notice or proceeding through any other
requirement.

(4) OFCCP may scek enforcement of this Agreement itself and is notrequired to
present proof of any underlying violations resotved by this Agreement.
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B. AGI may be subject to the sanctions set forth in Section 209 of the Executive
Order and/or other appropriate relief for violation of this Agreement.

11. This Agreement does not constitute an admission or denial by AGI of any violation of
E.O. 11246, Section 503, VEVRAA, or other laws, norhas there been an adjudicated
finding that AGI violated any laws.

PART 1L SPECIFIC ALLEGED VIOLATIONS AND REMEDIES

1. COMPENSATION

A. OFCCEP alleges that AGI discriminated against Hispanics employed as Analysts and Senior
Analysts by paying them less than comparable whites employed as Analysts and Senior
Analysts during its 2013 bonus cycle. Accordingly, OFCCP alleges that AGI discriminated
against ten Hispanic Analysts and Senior Analysts on the basis of ethnicity with respect to
their 2013 bonuses, in violation of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a)(1).

B. For the purposes of settlement, OFCCP conciliated an amount of $20,848.99 in back pay and
$4,514.72 in interest for a total amount of $25,363.71.

C. REMEDY FOR AFFECTED CLASS

(1) Notice, Within 30 calendar days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, AGI must
notify the Hispanic Analysts and Senior Analysts listed in Attachment A of the terms of
this Agreement by certified first class mail to each listed individual. AGI will send the

following documents: Notice to Class Members (Attachment B, “Notice”), Information
Verification Form (Attachment C, “Information Form), Release of Claims under
Executive Order 11246 (Attachment D, "Release of Claims™), and a postage paid retumn
envelope. Within 30 days after expiration of the response deadline set out in the
Information Form, AGI will provide OFCCP with a list of the individuals in the affected
class who have had letters returned as undeliverable or have not yet responded to the
Notice and/or have not returned a signed Information Form, OFCCP will then attempt to
obtain and provide updated addresses to AGI within 30 days of receiving the list from
AGIL AGI agrees to mail by first class mail a second Notice, Information Form, Release
of Claims, and postage paid return envelope to all individuals for whom updated
addresses were obtained within 30 days of receiving the updated addresses.

(2) Eligibility: All members listed on Attachment A who sign and return the Information
Form and Release of Claims to AGI within 30 days of the postmarked date on the
envelope containing the Notice and Information Form (“Eligible Class Members™) will
receive a share of the monetary settlement. If an individual receives, but does not return
the Information Form and Release of Claims to AGI within 30 calendar days of the
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postmarked date on the envelope containing the first or second Notice and Information
Form, he/she will no longer be entitled to a payment under this Agreement.

Within 30 days afier the response deadline set out in the Information Form, AGI will
provide OFCCP with a list of the Eligible Class Members (individuals who returned the
Information Form and Release of Claims by the deadline). Within 30 calendar days after
receiving the list, OFCCP will approve the final list of Eligible Class Members or discuss
with AGI any issues necessary to finalize the list, such as the inclusion or exclusion of
certain individuals.

(3) Monetary Settlement. AGI agrees to distribute $25,363.71 ($20,848.99 in back pay and
$4,514.72 in interest), less legal deductions required by law from back pay only (such as
federal, state and/or local taxes and the Eligible Class Members’ share of FICA taxes) to
all Eligible Class Members in the amounts listed on Attachment A (*“Compensation
Bonus List”). If not all members on Attachment A sign and return the Information Form
and Release of Claims, each Eligible Class Member’s share will increase in proportion to
his/her amount listed on Attachment A and the total number of Eligible Class Members
so that the full $25,363.71 is distributed. AGI will pay the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) the employer’s share of social security withholdings and will mail each Eligible
Class Member an IRS W-2 Form reporting the portion of the payment representing back
pay and an IRS Form 1099 for the portion of the payment representing interest. These
IRS forms will be mailed at the end of the year. AGI will disburse the monetary
settlement within 30 calendar days after OFCCP approves the final list of Eligible Class
Members (the “Final Compensation Bonus List”).

Within 30 calendar days of AGI’s receipt of a check to an Eligible Class Member
returned as undeliverable, AGI will notify OFCCP of this fact via ¢-mail sent to Victor S.
Rodriguez at ([ NS 2 do!. cov. OFCCP will attempt to locate the Eligible
Class Member and if OFCCP obtains an alternate address, AGI will re-mail the check
within 30 calendar days of receiving an alternate or corrected address. Any check that
remains uncashed 120 days after the initial date the check was mailed to the Eligible
Class Member will be void. With respect to any uncashed funds, AGI will make a second
proportional distribution to all Eligible Class Members who cashed their first check
within 15 days after all checks sent to Eligible Class Members have either been cashed or
rendered void due to not being cashed within 120 days after mailing.

(4) Impact Analysis and Bonus Adjustments. Within 90 days of the Effective Date of this
Agreement, AGI will conduct a regression analysis of its 2019 compensation bonuses for
Analysts and Senior Analysts using the October 2019 roster from which bonus decisions
were made. If the decision of compensation bonuses is based on the actual considerations
of some factors such as utilization, the regression analysis should properly include the
legitimate factors, If the analysis results in a stafistically significant disparity (at 2
standard deviations or more), adverse to Hispanics employees compared to white
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employees, AGI agrees 1o increase the bonuses of Hispanics in an amount that remedies
the disparity within 30 days after conducting the analysis.

D. NON-MONETARY REMEDIES

AGI will ensure that all employees are afforded equal employment opportunities. AGI agrees to
continue or to implement the corrective actions detailed below.

(1) Revise Bonus Process for Analysts and Senior Analyst: AGI agrees to implement a more
standardized process for awarding annual bonuses.

(2) Performance Evaluations: AGI will write and implement a policy requiring annual
performance evaluations of Analysts and Senior Analysts based on standardized criteria.
AGI will conduct an annual performance evaluation for each employee working as an
Analyst or Senior Analyst. Each employee's direct supervisor will evaluate the
employee's performance for the purpose of providing constructive feedback and guidance
to the employee, and for documenting, inter alia, the extent to which the employee has
achieved his/her job goals and objectives. Supervisors are expected to identify specific
exemples of performance behaviors to support performance evaluations and
compensation decisions. AGI will provide training to supervisors on how best to
document and record employees’ performance. Each employee must be provided an
electronic or written copy of his/her completed performance evaluation form. AGI must
retain an electronic or written copy of each completed evaluation form for the length of
time required by 41 CF.R. § 60- 1.12.

(3) Tracking and Evaluation; AGI will write and implement procedures to ensure that
compensation bonus decisions are tracked and evaluated for compliance with the revised
compensation bonus policy. AGI will write and implement procedures to ensure that
documents are retained in accordance with 41 C.F.R. 60-1.12(a) and Part 60-3,

(4) Training: Prior to November 1, 2020, AGI must train all individuals involved in any way
in determining compensation bonuses for Analyst and Senior Analysts positions on all
new and revised policies, procedures, and programs developed under Part I11-1.D of this
Agreement.

2. HIRING

A. OFCCP alleges that AGI discriminated against 417 Asian applicants for the Analyst position
based on their race. The alleged discrimination occ from the period of Jan 2012
to August 31, 2013. AGI offered Analyst positions t ian applicants out ofi

compared to

applicants, as compared to offering Analyst position to hite apphc
licants. OFCCP alleges that the lower offer rate of Asian Analysts
“ for white Analysts cannot be explained or justified by legitimate nondiscriminatory

reasons.
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B. For the purposes of settlement, the parties have agreed there was a shortfall of eight Asians.
The parties have agreed to setile this violation of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a)(1) for $384,636.30 (back
pay of $365,972.00 and interest of $18,664.30).

C. REMEDY FOR AFFECTED CLASS

(1) Notice. Within sixty (60) calendar days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, AGI
must notify the 417 Asian applicants listed in Attachment E ("Class Members™) of the
terms of this Agreement by certified first class mail. AGI will send the following
documents to each individual: Notice to Affected Class (Attachment F, *Notice™"),
Information Verification & Employment Interest Form {Attachment G, "Interest Form"),
Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 (Attachment H, "Release of Claims"),
and a postage paid return envelope. Within ninety (90) calendar days of the Effective
Date of this Agreement, AGI will provide OFCCP with a list of the individuals in the
affected class whose letters were undeliverable, who have not yet responded to the Notice
and/or have not returned a signed Interest Form. OFCCP will then attempt to obtain and
provide updated addresses to AGI within thirty (30} calendar days of receiving the list of
names from AGI. AGI agrees to mail by certified mail a second Notice, Interest Form,
Release of Claims and postage paid return envelope to all individuals for whom updated
addresses were obtained within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving the updated
addresses. '

(2) Eligibility. All Eligible Class Members are entitled to their share of the monetary
settlement subject to the foregoing. All members of the affected class (listed on
Attachment E) who sign and return the Interest Form and Release of Claims to AGI
within 30 calendar days of the postmarked date on the envelope containing the first or
second Notice and Interest Form (“Eligible Class Members™) will receive a share of the
monetary settlement and, if indicating an interest in employment, will be eligible to be
considered for a job pursuant to this Agreement. If an individual receives but does not
return the Interest Form and Release of Claims to AGI within 30 calendar days of the
postmarked date on the envelope containing the first or second Notice and Interest Form,
he/she will no longer be entitled to a payment or consideration for a job under this
Agreement,

Within 30 days after the response deadline set out in the Interest Form, AGI will provide
OFCCP with a list of the Eligible Class Members (individuals who returned the Interest
Form and Release of Claims by the deadline). Within 30 calendar days after receiving the
list, OFCCP will approve the final list of Eligible Class Members or discuss with AGI
any issues necessary to finalize the list, such as the inclusion or exclusion of certain
individuals. '

All Eligible Class Members are entitled to their share of the monetary settlement
regardless of whether they are interested in employment with AGL
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(3) Monetary Settlement. AGI agrees to disiribute $384,636.30 ($365,972.00 in back pay. and
$18,664.30 in interest), less legal deductions required by law from back pay only (such as
federal, state and/ or local taxes and the Eligible Class Members’ share of FICA taxes), in
equal shares among all eligible class members on the final approved list (“Final Hiring
List”).

AGI will pay the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) the employer’s share of social
security withholdings and will mail each Eligible Class Member an IRS W-2 Form
reporting the portion of the payment representing back pay and an IRS Form 1099 for the
portion of the payment representing interest. These IRS forms will be mailed at the end of
the year. AGI will disburse the monetary settlement within 30 calendar days after OFCCP
approves the Final Hiring List.

Within 30 calendar days of AGI’s receipt of a check to an Eligible Class Member
returned as undeliverable, AGI will notify OFCCP of this fact via e-mail sent to Victor S.
Rodriguez at{{)EENERISI 2 0. gcov. OFCCP will attempt to locate the Eligible
Class Member and if OFCCP obtains an alternate-address, AGI will re-mail the check
within 30 calendar days of receiving an alternate or corrected address. Any check that
remains uncashed 120 days after the initial date the check was mailed to the Eligible
Class Member will be void. With respect to any uncashed funds, AGI will make a second
equal distribution to all Eligible Class Members who cashed their first check within 15
days afier all checks sent to Eligible Class Members have either been cashed or rendered
void due to not being cashed within 120 days after mailing,.

(4) Employment. As positions become available, AGI wili consider qualified Eligible Class
Members not currently employed by AGI who express an interest in employment with
AGI until eight (8) Eligible Class Members are hired as Analysts or until! the list of
Eligible Class Members expressing an interest in employment is exhausted, whichever
occurs first. Eligible Class Members will be considered in the order that AGI receives
their Interest Forms. If AGI receives more than one response on any given day, those
Eligible Class Members will be considered for employment based on the date of their
original application. AGI must initiate its hiring of Eligible Class Members within 90
days of the effective date of this Agreement. If AGI is not able to hire eight (8) Eligible
Class Members or exhaust the list of Eligible Class Members expressing an interest in -
employment within 120 days, OFCCP may extend the term of this Agreement for up to
six (6) months or until AGI satisfies its hiring requirement(s), whichever occurs first.

Eligible Class Members will be allowed at least two weeks to report for work after
receiving a written job offer from AGIL The Eligible Class Members hired into Analyst
positions pursuant to this Agreement must be paid the current wage rate for the Analyst
position, and must be provided with the same benefits, privileges, and rights as other
Analyst employees.
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D. NON-MONETARY REMEDIES

AGI will ensure that all applicants are afforded equal employment opportunities. AGI agrees to
continue and/or to implement the corrective actions detailed below.

(1) Revised Hiring Process
(a) Eliminate Discriminatory Selection Procedures: AGI agrees to immediately cease use

of subjective hiring procedures that are not job-related and consistent with business

necessity. AGI agrees to comply with ali OFCCP regulations concerning selection

procedures, including 41 C.F.R. Part 60-3. AGI will not use any selection procedure that

has an adverse impact, as defined in 41 C.F.R. § 3.4D, on applicants of a particular race
" unless it is job-related and consistent with business necessity,

(b) Review and Revisions Required: AGI will revise, in writing, the practices, policies
and procedures it uses to select applicants for Analyst positions (hereinafter “Revised
Hiring Process™). Specifically, AGI will:

(i) create a job description and selection process for Analysts which describes the
essential functions; the minimum qualifications including required skills and
certifications; and the criteria used in each step of the hiring process, including any
application screens, interviews, review of criminal history, background checks, or
other selection procedure;

(ii) develop specific, job-related qualification standards for Analysts that reflect the
duties, functions, and competencies of the position to minimize the potential for
unlawfu! discrimination;

(iif) ensure all policies and qualification standards are uniformly applied to all
applicants; and

(iv) list clearly on its recruiting materials and job postings the minimum
qualifications, including required skills and certifications.

(c) Recordkeeping and Retention: AGI will write and implement procedures to ensure
that applicants are tracked, and decisions are documented at each step in the hiring
process. AGI will write and implement procedures to ensure that documents are retained
in accordance with 41 C.F.R. 60-1.12(a) and Part 60-3.

(d) Training: Within 90 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, AGI must train ail

individuals involved in any way in recruiting, selecting, or tracking applicants for Analyst

positions on the Revised Hiring Process. The training will include instruction in: the

proper implementation of the recruitment, tracking and selection procedures; neutral

application of the specified qualifications and criteria that will be used at each step in the
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hiring process; procedures to be used to document the decisions made at each step in the
hiring process; and the procedures to be used to ensure that documents are retained in
accordance with 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.12(a) and Part 60-3. AGI will meet with management
and all individuals responsibie for the selection process and review its equal employment
obligations and nondiscrimination policies related to hiring. Specific attention will be
directed to ensure that Asian applicants who benefit from the provisions of this
agreement are not retaliated against and do not suffer harassment or any form of reprisal
or adverse action based on or in relation to the terms of this Agreement.

(¢) Monitoring: AGI agrees to monitor selection rates at each step of its selection process
for Analysts. Where it is determined that a selection procedure has an adverse impact, as
defined in 41 C.F.R. § 3.4D, on the hiring of Asian applicants, AGI must either confirm
that the procedure uses criteria that are job-related and consistent with business necessity
or eliminate the procedure, choose an alternative procedure, or validate the procedure in
accordance with the UGESP codified at 41 C.F.R, Part 60-3. AGI agrees to maintain and
make available to OFCCP records concerning the impact of the selection process for
Analysts at all of AGI's facilities. This includes the number of persons hired by race, the
nurnber of applicants who applied by race, and the selection procedures utilized. This
information will be maintained until the expiration of this Agreement or as long as
required by the regulations, whichever is later.

3. NON-MONETARY VIOLATIONS

A. Identification of Problem Area

(1) AGI failed to perform an in-depth analysis of its total employment process to determine
whether and where impediments to equal employment opportunity exist, in violation of
41 CFR 60-2.17(b). Specifically, AGI failed to evaluate base pay and bonus pay systems
applicable to the 2C3- Entry Level Consultant job group to determine whether there were
race-based disparities.

(2) AGI must evaluate compensation systems to determine whether and where impediments
to equal opportunity exist, including analyzing all impediments that result in race-based
disparities.

B. Applicant Tracking

(1) AGI did not jmplement an accurate applicant tracking system for applicants and hires in
accordance with the requirements of 41 CFR 60-3.4 and 60-3.15.

(2) AGI must immediately begin to implement an updated and refined accurate applicant
tracking system for all On-Campus Interview (OCI) and non-OCT applicants that permit
AGI to analyze its pool of applicants for: (a) affirmative action purposes to monitor
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whether the process is yielding an adequate poo! of qualified Asian applicants; and (b)
nondiscrimination purposes to monitor for disparate treatment or unlawful disparate
impact in the selection process.

PART IV, REPORTING

Compensation Reports Reguired

L.

AGI must submit the documents and reports described below to: Victor Rodriguez, Mega
Project Coordinator of QFCCP Northeast Region, 201 Varick Street, Room 750, New
York, NY 10014.

A. Within 60 calendar days of the Effective Date of this Agreement AGI must submit a
copy of the written policies described in Part I1I-1.D.

B. By November 1, 2020, AGI must submit decumentation that all managers, supervisors,
and other personnel involved in making compensation decisions for Analysts have
received training on all new and revised policies, procedures, and programs developed
under Part I11-1.D of this Agreement. The documentation must include the dates of the
training, the names and job titles of all attendees, an outline of the topics discussed during
the training, and the name and job title of each person who conducted the training.

C. AGI must submit four (4) progress reports covering each six-month period this
Apreement is in effect. The first progress report will be due seven months after the
Effective Date of this Agreement and must cover the six-month period beginning with the
Effective Date. Each subsequent report must cover the successive six-month period, and
must be submitted within 30 calendar days after the close of that six-month period. AGI
will submit the following in each progress report:

(1) Documentation of monetary payments to all Eligible Class Members as specified in
Part I1I-1.C. The documentation must include the names of Eligible Class Members
who were paid, and, for each Eligible Class Member, the number and the amount of
the check and the date the check cleared the bank. AGI must provide QOFCCP with
copies of all canceled checks upon request.

(2) Documentation of completing the regression analysis and any resulting bonus
adjustments described in Part III-1.C of the Agreement. AGI will provide OFCCP,
via email and/or overnight mail, the database, output, and statistical log from the
regression analysis. :

(3) AGI must provide docurnentation describing all compliance efforts with the non-
monetary remedies in Part I11I-1.C.
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2. AGI will retain all records and data pertinent to the violations resolved by this Agreement

and/ or used to prepare required reports until this Agreement expires or as long as required by
OFCCP’s regulations, whichever date occurs later.

Hiring Reports Required

L.

AGI must submit the documents and reports described below to: Victor Rodriguez, Mega
Project Coordinator of OFCCP Northeast Region, 201 Varick Street, Room 750, New
York, NY 10014.

A. Within 60 calendar days of the Effective Date of this Agreement AGI must submit a

copy of the written Revised Hiring Process described in Part HI-2.D.

. Within 120 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, AGI must submit

documentation that all managers, supervisors and other personnel involved in recruiting,
selecting, or tracking applicants for Analysts have been trained on the Revised Hiring
Process. The documentation must include the dates of the training, the names and job
titles of all attendees, an outline of the topics discussed in the training, and the name and
job title of each person who conducted the training.

. Within the prescribed timeframes, AGI must submit all documents and information

referenced under Part IT1-2.C and 2.D.

. AGI must submit four (4) progfess reports covering each six-month period this

Agreement is in effect, The first progress report will be due August 1, 2020 and must
cover the period from January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020, Each subsequent report must
cover the successive six-month period, and must be submitted within 30 calendar days
after the close of that six-month period. AGI will submit the following in each progress
report:

(1) Documentation of monetary payments to all Eligible Class Members as specified in
section Part 111-2.C. The documentation must include the names of Eligible Class
Members who were paid, and, for each Eligible Class Member, the number and the
amount of the check and the date the check cleared the bank. AGI must provide
OFCCP with copies of all canceled checks upon request.

(2) Documentation of specific hiring activity for Eligible Class Members who were
hired as Analysts in accordance with this Agreement, including name, date of hire,
and job title hired into.

(3) For Eligible Class Members who wete considered for employment but were not hired,
AGI will provide the reason for non-placement along with all relevant documentation
(e.g., documentation that the Eligible Class Member declined a job offer).
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(4) The total number of applicants and hires and the breakdown by race/ethnicity of
applicants and hires for Analyst positions during the reporting period.

(5) For Analysts, the results of AGI’s analysis as to whether its total selection process has
adverse impact, as defined in 41 C.F.R. § 60-3.4D, on Asians applicants. For
purposes of the adverse impact analysis, AGI must not include hires made of Eligible
Class Members pursuant to this Agreement in that analysis. For the second and fourth
progress reports, AGI must combine the data for the current report with the data from
the previous report(s) to analyze at least a 12-month period.

(6) For each case where the total selection process has an adverse impact, as defined in
41 CF R. § 60-3.4D, the results of AGI’s evaluation of the individual components of
the selection process for adverse impact. :

(7) The actions taken by AGI upon determining that any component of the selection
process has an adverse impact on members of groups set forth in section Part II1-2.DD
above.

2. AGI will retain all records and data pertinent to the violations resolved by this Agreement
and/ or used to prepare required reports until this Agreement expires or as long as required by
OFCCP’s regulations, whichever date occurs later.

Non-Monetary Reports Required

1. AGI must submit the documents and reports described below to: Victor Rodriguez, Mega
Project Coordinator of OFCCP Northeast Region, 201 Varick Street, Room 750, New
York, NY 10014,

A. Within [20 days of the Effective Date of this A greement, AGI must submit
documentation that it has evaluated its compensation systems to determine whether and
where impediments to equal opportunity exist, including analyzing all impediments that
result in race-based disparities.

B. Within 120 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, AGI must submit
documentation that it has immediately begun to implement an updated and refined
accurate applicant tracking system for all On-Campus Interview (OCI) and non-OCI
applicants that permit AGI to analyze its pool of applicants for: (a) affirmative action
purposes to monitor whether the process is yielding an adequate pool of qualified Asian
applicants; and (b) nondiscrimination purposes to monitor for disparate treatment or
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unlawful disparate impact in the selection process.

PART V. SIGNATURES

uted by and between the OFCCP and AGL

Diana Sen

co-Chief Administrative Offic Regional Director
Analysis Group, Inc. OFCCP, Northeast ?egion

Date: Z/Kg:/ﬁ.o Date: 3 IS 20
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ATTACHMENT A - COMPENSATION BONUS LIST
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Bonus Bonus Bonus
Adjustment Adjustment Adjustment

Backpay Interest Total |
$1,861.52 $403.10 $2,264.62
$2,978.42 $644.96 $3,623.38
$1,861.52 $403.10 $2,264.62
$1,861.52 $403.10 $2,264.62
$1,861.52 $403.10 $2,264.62
$1,861.52 $403.10 $2,264.62
$2,792.27 $604.65 $3,396.92
$930.76 $201.55 $1,132.31
$1,861.52 $403.10 $2,264.62
$2,978.42 $644.96 $3,623.38




ATTACHMENT B - NOTICE TO CLASS MEMBERS
[Analysis Group, Inc. Letterhead]
[Date]

[Class Member Name]
[Street]
[City, State, Zip]

Dear [Class Member Name]:

Analysis Group, Inc. and the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs (“OFCCP”) have entered into a Conciliation Agreement (“Agreement”) to remedy
alleged violations of Executive Order 11246 (“E.O. 11246™) that arose out of a compliance
review of AGI’s facility located at 111 Huntington Avenue, Boston, MA 02199. OFCCP alleges
that in 2013, Hispanics in Analyst and Senior Analyst positions were paid less in bonuses than
whites in the same position. Analysis Group, Inc. does not admit any violation of E.O. 11246 and
there has not been any adjudicated finding that Analysis Group, Inc. violated any laws. OFCCP
and Analysis Group, Inc. entered into this Agreement to resolve the matter without resorting to
further legal proceedings.

You have been identified as one of the individuals who was part of the 2013 Analyst/Senior
Analyst bonus class. Under this Agreement, you may be cligible to receive a payment of [insert
amount from Attachment A] (less deductions required by law). Under the terms of this
Agreement it may take up to six months from the date of this letter before you receive your
payment. In order to be eligible for a payment, you must complete, sign, and timely return both
the enclosed (1) Information Verification form and (2) Release of Claims under Executive Order
11246 form.

Both forms should be mailed as soon as possible and must be postmarked no later than 30
days from the date this letter was postmarked in order for you to be entitled to participate
in this settlement.

The forms must be returmned to the address below:

Coreen McCool
co-Chief Administrative Officer
Analysis Group, Inc.
111 Huntington Avenue, 14" Floor
Boston, MA 02199
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You may use the enclosed postage-paid return envelope to return the completed and signed
forms.

If you have any questions, you may call Corcen McCool at 617 | o OFCCP Mega
Project Coordinator Victor Rodriguez at 646- | Y our cali will be returned as soon as
possible.

IF YOU FAIL TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED FORMS TO ANALYSIS GROUP, INC.
WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE DATE THE ENVELOPE CONTAINING THIS NOTICE WAS POSTMARKED,
YOU WILL FORFEIT ANY RIGHTS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS SETTLEMENT AND WILL NOT BE
ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE A PAYMENT.

Sincerely,

Coreen McCool

co-Chief Administrative Officer
Analysis Group, Inc.

111 Huntington Avenue, 14™ Floor
Boston, MA 02199

Enclosures: Information Verification Form
Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 Form
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ATTACHMENT C - INFORMATION VERIFICATION FORM

You must complete this form and the Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 form in order to be
eligible for the monetary payment under the terms of the Conciliation Agreement between Analysis
Group, Inc. and the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Please
write legibly, except for your signature.

Name:

Telephone No.:

Email:

( ) I confirm that the address on the cover letter is correct.
( ) The address on the cover letter is not correct. My correct address is:

Address:

Please uotify Analysis Group, Inc. at the address or email below if your address or phone number
changes within the next six months.

Ms. Coreen McCool
co-Chief Administrative Officer
Analysis Group, Inc.

111 Huntington Avenue, 14* Floor
Boston, MA 02199

ISR o) 2n-1ysisgroup.com

If you fail to complete and return this form and the Release of Claims under Executive
Order 11246 form within thirty (30) days of the date the envelope containing this Notice
was postmarked, you will not be eligible to receive any payment.

I certify the above 1s true and correct.

Signature Date
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ATTACHMENT D
RELEASE OF CLAIMS UNDER EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246

This Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 (“Release”) is a legal document. This
document states that in return for Analysis Group, Inc. (“AGI”) paying you money, you agree
that you will not file any lawsuit against AGI for allegedly violating Executive Order 11246
in connection with 2013 bonus compensation to Analysts or Senior Analysists. It also says that
AGI does not admit that it violated any laws. This Release says you had sufficient time to
look at the document, to talk with others about the document, including an attorney, and
that no one pressured you into signing the document. Finally, it says that if you do not sign and
return the document by a certain date, you will not receive a payment or any other consideration
under the terms of the Conciliation Agreement, which governs this matter.

In consideration of the payment of [insert amount from Attachment A] (less deductions required
by law) by AGI to me, which I agree is acceptable, I, [NAME], agree to the following:

L.
I hereby waive, release and forever discharge Analysis Group, Inc., its predecessors, related
entities, subsidiaries, and organizations, and its and their directors, officers, employees, agents,
successors, and assigns, of and from any and all actions, causes of action, damages, liabilities,
and claims arising out of or actionable under Executive Order 11246, as amended, which I or my
representatives (heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns) have or may have, which relate in
any way to my 2013 compensation bonus as an Analyst or Senior Analyst.

II.
I understand that Analysis Group, Inc. does not admii that it treated me unlawfully or unfairly in
any way and that Analysis Group, Inc. entered into a conciliation agreement with OFCCP in the
spirit of conciliation and to bring closure and resolve the matter without further legal proceeding.
1 agree that the payment of the aforesaid sum by Analysis Group, Inc. to me is not to be construed
as an admission of any lability by Analysis Group, Inc.

III.
I understand that this Release of Claims is a legal document, and I declare that I have read this
Release of Claims and that I have had a full opportunity to consider and understand its terms and
to consult with my advisors. I further declare that I have decided of my own free will to sign this
Release.

V. ,
I understand that if I do not sign this Release and the Information Verification Form and return
both to Analysis Group, Inc. within 30 days of the date the envelope containing these forms was
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postmarked, I will not be entitled to receive the above-referenced payment.

Signature Date
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ATTACHMENT E - HIRE CLASS MEMBER LIST

No. | Applicant Name (Last Name, First Name)
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34

35

36

37 |

| 63

38 |
39 |
a0 |
a1 |
a2 |
a3 |
a4 |
45 |
46 |
a7 |
48 |
a9 |
50 §
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62

64
65
66
67
68
69
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106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
128
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141

Page 23 0of 39




Page 24 of 39




178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199

200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210

211
212
213

Page 25 of 39




Page 26 of 39



250
[ 251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
{ 281
282
283
284
285
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286
287
288 |
289 |
290 |
291

292 |
293 |
294 |
295 |
296 |
297 |
298 |
299 |
300 |
301 |
302 |
303 |
304 |
305 |
306 |
307 |
308 |
309 |
310 |
311 |
312 |
313 |
314 |
315 |
316 |
317 |
318 |
319 |
320 |
321 |
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322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
{345
346

347
348
.349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
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394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407

1 408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416

417
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ATTACHMENT F - NOTICE TO CLASS MEMBERS
[Analysis Group, Inc. Letterhead)
[Date]

[Class Member Name]
{Street]
[City, State, Zip]

Dear [Class Member Name]:

Analysis Group, Inc. (“AGI”) and The Department of Labor's Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs ("OFCCP") have entered into a Conciliation Agreement to remedy
the alleged violations of Executive Order 11246 that arose out of a compliance review of
AGT’s Boston, Massachusetts facility. OFCCP alleges that during the period of January 1,
2012 to August 31, 2013, AGI discriminated agamst Asian applicants for the Analyst
position based on race.

AGI does not admit any violation of Executive Order 11246 and there has not been any
adjudicated finding that AGI violated any laws. OFCCP and AGI entered into the
Agreement to resolve the matter without resorting to further legal proceedings. You have
been identified as an individual who applied for the Analyst position during that time
period, but who was not hired.

As part of this Agreement, you are eligible to receive a distribution of at least $922.39 less
lawful payroll deductions. Under the terms of this Agreement, it may take up to six months
from the date of this letter before you receive your distribution. In order to be eligible fora
payment, you must complete, sign, and return the enclosed Information Verification &
Employment Interest Form and Release of Claims. You should complete and mail back the
forms as soon as possible. It must be postmarked to the address below no later than 30 days
after the date this Notice was mailed out (postmarked) for you to be entitled to participate
in this settlement.

Ms. Coreen McCool
co-Chief Administrative Officer
Analysis Group, Inc.

111 Huntington Avenue, 14 Floor
Boston, MA 02199

You may use the enclosed postage-paid return envelope to return the completed and
signed Information Verification and Employment Interest Form and Release of Claims.
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In addition to the monetary disiribution, AGI will be making job offers for Analyst
positions in its offices throughout the United States to a [imited number of qualified
individuals receiving this notification if and when positions become available at its
respective locations. Enclosed is a job description for the Analyst position. It is not certain
that you will receive a job offer. If you are still interested in an Analyst position in one of
AGI’s facilities, please check the appropriate box on the enclosed Information Verification
and Employment Interest Form. If hired, you will be subject to AGI's policies and
performance standards.

If youhave any questions, you may call Coreen McCool at AGL at 617- [ or OF CCP Mega
Project Coordinator Victor S. Rodriguez at64f_ Yourcall willbe returned as soon as
possible.

IFYOUFAILTO COMPLETE ANDRETURN THE ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS TO
AGI WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THE ENVELOPE CONTAINING THIS
NOTICE WAS POSTMARKED, YOU WILL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE A
PAYMENT OR TO BE CONSIDERED FOR A JOB OFFER.

Sincerely,

Coreent McCool

co-Chief Administrative Officer
Analysis Group, Inc.

111 Huntington Avenue, 14™ Floor
Boston, MA 02199

Enclosures:  Information Verification & Employment Interest Form

Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 Form
Analyst Job Description
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About Analysis Group:

Analysis Group is one of the largest economics consulting firms, with more than 1,000
professionals across 14 offices in North America, Europe, and Asia. Since 1981, we have
provided expertise in economics, finance, health care analytics, and strategy to top law firms,
Fortune Global 500 companies, and government agencies worldwide. Our internal experts,
together with our network of affiliated experts from academia, industry, and government, offer
our clients exceptional breadth and depth of expertise.

We offer cutting-edge analyses and analytical tools to address business challenges that
require rigorous, evidence-based research.

We collaborate with top professors from leading institutions to create a bridge between
current academic thinking and real business issues.

We assist premier law firms in many different litigation contexts, inciuding antitrust,
healthcare, intellectual property and commercial damages, and with all aspects of
litigation, including pretrial discovery, development of economic and financial models,
preparation of testimony, and critique of opposing experts.

We advise corporate and government clients on a range of business issues that require
expert interpretation of economic and financial data, including valuation of companies
and assets, securities and financial instruments, tax and transfer pricing issues, cost-
effectiveness analyses, market analyses, and evaluation of mergers and acquisitions.

We also help organizations create strategies for growth by analyzing market dynamics
and organizational capabilities, enhancing innovation in current products and services,
and identifying new market opportunities.

About the Analyst Position:

As an analyst, you have the opportunity to work on complex business problems within a
collaborative environment. Analysts can expect to work on multiple projects at a time across
various practice areas and industnies. Responsibilities and work experiences may include but are
not limited to the following:

Analyzing economic, financial, and healthcare data using algorithms and statistical
programming in Java, Python, R, SAS, Stata, VBA, and other programs
Developing data analyses using statistical methods and analytical tools including
econometric estimation of models, survival analysis, and machine learning

Creating dynamic visualizations to rapidly explore data and models
Examining market and industry behavior through targeted research
Reviewing and summarizing analyst reports and client documents

Participating in meetings with academic experis and case team members
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s Assisting in the preparation of expert reports and other client deliverables

Analysis Group fosters a progressive and academically oriented work environment, with an
emphasis on teamwork and collaboration across diverse areas of expertise. Specifically, we seek
candidates who have:

s A bachelor’s and/or master’s degree in computer science, economics, finance,
mathematics, physics, statistics, or related subjects

« Passion for using data and analytics to solve the economic, financial, and business

challenges our clients face

Demonstrated analytical, quantitative, and organizational skills

Experience or a strong interest in statistical programming and data analysis

Strong interpersonal, oral, and written communication skills

An excellent academic record .

Effectively worked independently and within a team

Excellent attention to detail

A desire to continuously learn and develop professionally

Applicants are required to have at least a 3.3 GPA or higher in their most recent degree to be
considered.

Analysts often move on to top graduate programs for an MS, MBA, JD, or Ph.D. after their
tenure with the firm; some return as associates after graduate school.

‘When submitting your resume, please include an unofficial transcript(s) and a cover letter
indicating geographic preference(s).

*Equal Opportunity Employer/Protected Veterans/Individuals with Disabilities.

°Please view Equal Employment Opportunity Posters provided by OFCCP here.

oThe contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against employees or
applicants because they have inquired about, discussed, or disclosed their own pay or the pay of
another employee or applicant. However, employees who have access to the compensation
information of other employees or applicants as a part of their essential job functions cannot
disclose the pay of other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have
access to compensation information, unless the disclosure is (a} in response to a formal
complaint or charge, (b) in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action,
including an investigation conducted by the employer, or (c) consistent with the contractor's
legal duty to furnish information.
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ATTACHMENT G
INFORMATION VERIFICATION & EMPLOYMENT INTEREST FORM

ou must complete this form in order to be eligible for the monetary payment and/or
employment opportunitiecs under the terms of the Conciliation Agreement hetween

nalysis Group, Inc. (“AGI”) and the U. S. Department of Labor’s Office of Federal
Contract Compliance Programs.

Name:

Address;

Telephone: Home Cell Other

Notify Coreen McCool, co-Chief Administrative Officer at Analysis Group, Inc., 111
Huntington Ave., 14™ Floor, Boston, MA 02199 (GBI @ analysisgroup.com) if
your contact information changes.

For purposes of this settlement, it is necessary to verify your gender and race (choose all
that apply):

[ Male [0 Female

0 White O Black [0 Asian

[ Hispanic O American Indian/Alaskan Native [ Native Hawaiian/Pacific
(1 Other Islander

Please indicate below whether you are currently interested in employment in an Analyst position
with AGI. Please note that AGI has several facilities throughout the United States. Some
offices may not have Analyst positions available. If you complete, sign, and return this
Information Verification & Employment Interest Form, and Release of Claims, you remain
eligible for the monetary payment whether or not you are mterested in employment at this
time.

O Yes, I am interested in employment with AGI in an Analyst position.
O No, I am not interested in employment with AGI in an Analyst position

IF YOU FAIL TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS TO
THE ADDRESS BELOW WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE
TO CLASS MEMBER, YOU WILL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE A
PAYMENT, TO BE CONSIDERED FOR A JOB OFFER, OR TO RECEIVE ANY
OTHER CONSIDERATION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE CONCILIATION
AGREEMENT, WHICH GOVERN THIS MATTER.
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Ms. Coreen McCool
co-Chief Administrative Officer -
Analysis Group, Inc.
111 Huntington Avenue, 14® Floor
Boston, MA 02199

By signing below, I certify the above information is true and correct.

Signature Date
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ATTACHMENT H
RELEASE OF CLAIMS UNDER EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246

This Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 (“Release”) is a legal document. This
document states that in retum for Analysis Group, Inc. (“AGI”) paying you money, you agree
that you will not file any lawsuit against AGI for allegedly violating Executive Order 11246
in connection with its hiring of Asians for its Analyst position. It also says that AGI does not
admit that it violated any laws. This Release says you had sufficient time to look at the
document, to talk with others about the document, including an attorney, and that no one
pressured you into signing the document. Finally, it says that if you do not sign and return the
document by a certain date, you will not receive a payment or be considered for a job offer or
any other consideration under the terms of the Conciliation Agreement, which governs this
matter,

In consideration of the payment of at least $922.39 (less deductions required by law) by AGI to
me, which I agree is acceptable, I, [NAME], agree to the following:

L

I hereby waive, release and forever discharge AGI, its predecessors, successors, related
entities, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates and organizations, and its and their sharecholders,
directors, officers, employees, agents, successors, and assigns, of and from any and all
actions, causes of action, damages, liabilitics, and claims arising out of or actionable under
Executive Order 11246, as amended, for alleged faiture to hire under Executive Order 11246,
based on any acts or omissions or other events known or that could reasonably be known,
occurring at any time prior to the dat¢ of my signature on this Release.

11

I understand that AGI does not admiit that it treated me unlawfully or unfairly in any way
and that AGI entered into the Conciliation Agreement with the OFCCP and agreed to make
the payment described above to resolve alleged disparities in hiring and to resolve the matter
without further legal proceedings in the compliance review initiated by OFCCP for the period
of January 1, 2012 through August 31, 2013. I further agree that the payment of the aforesaid
sum or any other consideration provided to me by AGI is not an admission of any liability by
AGL '

IIL
I declare that I have read this Release and that I have had a full opportunity to consider and
understand its terms and to consult with my advisors and seek legal advice. 1 further declare
that I have decided of my own free will to sign this Release.

Iv. .
I understand that if I do not sign this Release and return it to AGI within thirty days after the
date that this Notice was postmarked, I will not be eligible to receive a payment or to be
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considered for a job offer or any other consideration under the terms of the Conciliation
Apgreement.

Signature:

Date:
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